18 JUNE 2015

**DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE** 

\*

Present

#### **MEMBERS:**

Councillor D Collins (Chairman); Councillors Birnie, Conway, Clark, Guest, P Hearn, Maddern, Ritchie, R Sutton, Tindall, Whitman and C Wyatt-Lowe.

Councillors Harden, G Sutton and Williams also attended

#### **OFFICERS:**

S Clark (Interim Group Manager of Development Management and Planning), F Bogle, A Parrish, J Reid, P Stanley, B Curtain, N Gibbs, T Rennie, P Doyle, C Watson, N Weeks, T Lawson.

The meeting began at 7.00 pm

#### 021. INTRODUCTIONS

Councillor D Collins (Chairman) introduced himself and the officers present and went through the fire safety procedure. Councillor D Collins asked Members to remember to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary or other Interests at the beginning of the relevant planning application. He also reminded the members and public about the rules regarding public participation.

Cllr Collins gave advanced warning that agenda items 5.13, 5.14 and 5.15 were likely to be deferred due to time constraints.

Councillor D Collins announced that he would change the order of the applications being considered and bring forward the applications with Public Participation. The applications are minuted numerically to accord with the agenda.

An addendum to the agenda was circulated before the meeting. A copy of the addendum can be found on the DBC website on the following link:

http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/council-democracy/meetings-minutes-and-agendas/events/2015/06/18/development-control-committee/development-control-committee

#### 022. MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on 28 May 2015 were confirmed by the Members present and were then signed by the Chairman

#### 023. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors Riddick and Matthews.

Councillor Mrs P Hearn substituted for Councillor Riddick.

#### 024. PLANNING APPLICATIONS

The Committee considered applications for planning permission as set out below and reached the decisions therein.

025. 4/03763/14/MFA – CHANGE OF USE OF FOUR LONG TERM VACANT RETAIL UNITS AT PODIUM LEVEL OF BLOCKS C AND D TO A TOTAL OF 15 ONE AND TWO BEDROOM CLASS C3 APARTMENTS.

#### IMAGE DEVELOPMENT, LEIGHTON BUZZARD ROAD, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD

Andrew Parrish introduced the report and updated Members on the information requested at the previous Committee. Members were advised that the recommendation should be amended to delegate with a view to approval subject to the completion of a s106 agreement, rather than Grant.

Simon Dewar, a neighbour, and County Councillor McKay spoke in objection.

John Richards of Dandara spoke in support of the application.

Ward Councillor Williams spoke in objection of the application.

The development was debated with concerns being raised by Members with regards to the loss of retail floor space in relation to the Core Strategy.1

It was proposed by Councillor C Wyatt-Lowe and seconded by Councillor Maddern that the Officer's recommendation be overturned and the application be refused:

Voting:

10 for and 1 abstention;

whereupon it was:

Resolved:

Officer's recommendation overturned – application **REFUSED** 

The applicant has not demonstrated a full commitment to marketing the vacant retail units for their intended and permitted A1, A2 or A3 uses. The loss of floorspace for these retail uses would have a harmful effect on the vitality and viability of this part of Hemel Hempstead Town Centre, contrary to Policies CS16 and CS33 of the core strategy. The proposal is also contrary to Policy CS4 of the Core Strategy, which seeks a mix of uses in town centre locations, and Policy CS13 which seeks pedestrian friendly, shared spaces, in appropriate location

#### 026. 4/01190/15/MFA CHANGE OF USE OF FOUR EXISTING CINEMA

AUDITORIA FROM CLASS D2 ASSEMBLY & LEISURE TO CLASS A3 RESTAURANTS & CAFÉ'S. ADDITIONALLY THE APPLICATION IS TO INCLUDE ALTERATIONS TO THE EAST ELEVATION OF THE BUILDING TO SUIT THE NEW USE.

### EMPIRE CINEMA, LEISURE WORLD, JARMAN WAY, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HP2 4JW

.Fiona Bogle introduced the report.

It was proposed by Councillor Clarke and seconded by Councillor Maddern to grant the application in line with the officer's recommendation.

Voting:
Unanimously agreed;
whereupon it was:

Resolved:

The planning permission be granted, in line with the Officer's recommendations.

# 027. 4/00779/15/MFA – DEMOLITIONOF EXISTING OFFICE BUILDING. CONSTRUCTION OF 14 NEW FLATS IN A FOUR-STOREY BUILDING WITH ASSOCIATED CAR PARKING AND LANDSCAPING.

#### ABLE HOUSE, FIGTREE HILL, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HP2 5XL

Andrew Parrish introduced the report.

It was proposed by Councillor C Wyatt-Lowe and seconded by Councillor Whitman to grant the application in line with the officer's recommendation.

Voting:

Unanimously agreed;

Whereupon it was:

#### Resolved:

That planning permission be delegated to the Group Manager – Development Management & Planning with a view to approval subject to the completion of a planning obligation under s.106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the draft list of conditions below.

<u>Amended Condition 6</u> The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with Section 7 (Sustainability and Environment Statement) of the Design and Access

Statement, and the approved C-Plan Sustainability Statement. Notwithstanding any details submitted, no development shall take place until an energy statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority to demonstrate that an additional 5% CO2 reduction on the current Building Regulations will be achieved. The measures identified in the statements shall thereafter be retained and adequately maintained at all times unless otherwise agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

<u>Reason:</u> To ensure the sustainable development of the site in accordance with the aims of Policies CS29 and 31 and Para. 18.22 of the Dacorum Borough Core Strategy September 2013 and adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance.

#### **Additional Conditions**

<u>Condition 16</u> Prior to first occupation of the development, a post construction review to formally demonstrate achievement of the energy performance target approved under Condition 6 shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

<u>Reason:</u> To ensure the sustainable development of the site in accordance with the aims of Policies CS29 and 31 and Para. 18.22 of the Dacorum Borough Core Strategy September 2013 and adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance.

Condition 17 No development shall take place until plans and details showing how the development will provide for sustainable surface water drainage from the building (including provision for its maintenance thereafter) shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The approved measures shall be provided before any part of the development is first brought into use and they shall thereafter be permanently retained.

<u>Reason:</u> To ensure the sustainable development of the site in accordance with the aims of Policies CS29 and 31 of the Dacorum Borough Core Strategy September 2013 and adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance.

<u>Condition 18</u> The windows on the Northern elevation of the block hereby permitted shall be non-opening, and shall be permanently fitted with obscured glass.

Reason: In the interests of the amenity of adjoining residents in accordance with Policy CS12 of the Core Strategy

028. 4/01895/15/MFA – DEMOLITION OF FORMER GARAGE BUILDINGS AND REDEVELOPMENT TO PROVIDE 11 NEW DWELLINGS THROUGH A COMBINATION OF CONVERSION AND NEW BUILD.

#### LAND AT 9, 11 & 13 HIGH STREET AND SWING GATE LANE, BERKHAMSTED, HP4

Chris Thompson, developer, spoke in support of the application.

Berkhamsted Town Councillor Garrick Stevens spoke in objection to the application.

It was proposed by Councillor Whitman and seconded by Councillor Guest to grant the application in line with the officer's recommendations

Voting:

10 For and 1 Against

whereupon it was:

#### Resolved:

Officer's recommendation agreed – **GRANTED subject to signed S106 and completion of consultation period–** with revisions to heads of terms below:-

#### Revisions to S106 Heads of Terms -

- •All 11 units to be affordable housing units "Affordable Housing Units" Means elevent (11) Residential Units to be constructed on the Property pursuant to the Planning Permission and made available for Affordable Housing of which Fourteen (11) Residential Units shall be Social Rental Dwellings or such other split of units and tenure as may be agreed in writing with the Housing Manage
- •Fire Hydrant provision
- •Highway contributions £4750 The contribution is payable on first occupation of the site. The contribution is to be index linked (SPON) from the date of the s106 agreement to the date of payment. The contribution is to be set aside towards implementing sustainable transport measures.

029. 4/01088/13/MFA – DEMOLITION OF EXISTING HOTEL PREMISES AND ASSOCIATED BUILDINGS WITHIN THE EXISTING COMPLEX AND CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW 100 BEDROOM HOTEL TOGETHER WITH REVISED ACCESS REQUIREMENTS AND CAR PARKING. RELOCATION OF 2 CARAVANS/ MOBILE HOMES.

BOBSLEIGH HOTEL, HEMPSTEAD ROAD, BOVINGDON, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HP3 0DS

Nigel Gibbs introduced the report and addendums.

Brad Gunn of Bovingdon Action Group and Kevin McLaughlan spoke in objection of the application.

Ward Councillor Barnes spoke in objection.

It was proposed by Councillor R Sutton and seconded by Councillor Guest to grant the application:

Voting:

2 For, 8 Against and 1 abstention;

It was then proposed by Councillor Conway and Seconded by Councillor Ritchie that the application be refused:

Voting:

9 For and 2 abstentions:

whereupon it was:

#### Resolved:

Officer's recommendation overturned – application **REFUSED** 

The proposal is inappropriate development in the green belt, and insufficient very special circumstances have been demonstrated, contrary to Policy C5 of the Core Strategy, and NPPF Policy 89.

030. 4/01228/15/FUL – DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLING AND CONSTRUCTION OF TWO DETACHED DWELLINGS WITH INTEGRAL GARAGES AND CAR PARKING, LANDSCAPING AND REVISED VEHICULAR ACCESS.

#### THE PENNANT, DOCTORS COMMON ROAD, BERKHAMSTED, HP4 3DW

Mr Pickup, neighbour, spoke in objection to the application.

Councillor Garrick Stevens, Berkhamsted Town Councillor spoke in objection to the application.

Peter Baker, Architect, spoke in support of the application.

It was proposed by Councillor R Sutton and Seconded by Councillor Conway to grant the application.

Voting:

3 for, 5 against and 3 abstentions

It was then proposed by Councillor Ritchie and Seconded by Councillor Clarke that the application be refused:

Voting:

5 for, 3 against and 3 abstentions

whereupon it was:

#### Resolved

Officer's recommendation overturned – application **REFUSED** 

The proposal fails to conserve or enhance the character of the Berkhamsted Conservation Area, by virtue of the extent of the solid form, and the over dominant of properties on Kings Road, contrary to Core Strategy Policies CS27 and CS12.

#### 031. 4/01454/15/OUT CONSTRUCTION OF TWO DWELLINGS

#### HIGH DRIVE, AYLESBURY ROAD, TRING, HP23 4DJ

Ed Whelan, developer, spoke on behalf of the owners and in support of the application.

It was proposed by Councillor C Wyatt-Lowe and seconded by Councillor Tindall to grant the application in line with the officer's recommendations.
Voting:
Unanimously agreed;
whereupon it was:
Resolved:
That planning permission be granted, subject to the following amended and additional conditions:
Officer's recommendation agreed – application <b>GRANTED</b> , with the following additional and amended conditions:-
Amendment to Condition 16: add the words 'and widening' after 'resurfacing'.
032. 4/00221/15/FUL – CONSTRUCTION OF DETACHED DWELLING WITH INTEGRAL GARAGE. NEW DETACHED GARAGE TO SERVE 2 ST MARYS AVENUE, CLOSURE OF VEHICLE ACCESS TO DARRS LANE AND FORMATION OF NEW VEHICLE ACCESS TO DARRS LANE. DEMOLITION OF TWO GARAGES.
R/O 1 COVERT ROAD AND 2 ST MARYS AVENUE, NORTHCHURCH, BERKHAMSTED, HP4 3RR
Edward Hunt, Agent spoke in support of the application.
It was proposed by Councillor R Sutton and seconded by Councillor Conway to agree the application in line with the officer's recommendations:
Voting:
Unanimously agreed
Whereupon it was:
Resolved:
Officer's recommendation agreed – application <b>GRANTED</b>
033. 4/00280/15/FUL – CONSTRUCTION OF FOUR 3 BEDROOM SEMI-DETACHED HOUSES.

7 Chairman

52 & 54 LOCKERS PARK LANE, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD HP1 1TJ

Simon Andrews and Richard Wittrick spoke in support of the application.

Brian Hunt, neighbour, spoke in objection to the application.

Ward Councillor Harden spoke in objection to the application.

There was no proposer for granting the application in line with the officer's recommendation.

It was then proposed by Councillor Ritchie and seconded by Councillor Whitman to overturn the officer's recommendation and refuse the application:

Voting:

10 For and 1 Abstention;

whereupon it was:

Resolved:

Officer's recommendation overturned – application **REFUSED** 

The proposal fails to meet appropriate standards of design, on the basis of over-dominance, and the failure to conform to the surrounding character of the area of chalet bungalows, contrary to Policies CS12 and CS11 of the Core Strategy.

## 034. 4/03601/14/FUL – DEVELOPMENT OF 2 NEW DTACHED DWELLINGS ON LAND ADJOINING OLD FISHERY HOUSE WITH ACCESS ROAD AND SINGLE GARAGE ATTACHED TO EACH DWELLING.

#### OLD FISHERY HOUSE, OLD FISHERY LANE, HEMEL HEMPSTEAD, HP1 2BN

Councillor C Wyatt-Lowe disclosed that she was a friend of the agent but had never discussed the application with him and therefore reserved her right to speak and vote. Councillor Whitman advised that his daughter was one of the objectors to this application but had never discussed this application with her and reserved her right to speak and vote on the application.

Richard Ronald, agent, and applicants son spoke in support of the application.

Steve Wiles & Peter Garner, neighbours spoke in objection to the application.

Ward Councillor Williams spoke in objection to the application.

There was no proposer to grant the application in line with the officer's recommendations.

It was then proposed by Councillor Whitman and seconded by Councillor P Hearn to overturn the officer's recommendation and refuse the application for the reasons set out.

Voting:

Unanimously agreed

8

Whereupon it was

Resolved:

Officer's recommendation overturned – application **REFUSED** 

The proposed development fails to reflect the character of the neighbourhood, and the setting of the nearby heritage asset, contrary to Policies CS11 and CS 27 of the Core Strategy.

### 035. 4/01813/15/FUL – DEMOLITION OF EXISTING DWELLING AND ERECTION OF TWO NEW DWELLINGS

#### 7 PICKFORD ROAD, MARKYATE, ST ALBANS AL3 8RS

Dean Goodman, Planning Consultant spoke in support of the application.

Julie Parker, neighbour, spoke in objection to the application.

It was proposed by Councillor C Wyatt-Lowe and seconded by Councillor R Sutton to grant the application.

Voting:

8 for, 1 against and 2 abstentions

Whereupon it was

#### Resolved

That planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:-

Officer's recommendation agreed – application APPROVED

### 036. 4/00822/15/FHA – REAR GROUND AND LOWER GROUND FLOOR EXTENSION 60 CHARLES STREET, BERKHAMSTED, HP4 3DJ

Nicola Few, architect spoke in support of the application.

It was proposed by Councillor Conway and seconded by Councillor P Hearn to grant the application for the reasons above.

Voting:

10 for and 1 abstention

Whereupon it was:

#### Resolved

Officer's recommendation agreed - application APPROVED

#### 037. 4/00751/15/FHAUL - TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSION

#### BRIARS ORCHARD, SHOOTERSWAY LANE, BERKHAMSTED HP4 3NW

#### Application **DEFERRED** to next meeting

038. 4/01555/15/FHA – DIVIDING FENCE TO FRONT GARDEN.

9 BARTHOLOMEW GREEN, MARKYATE, ST ALBANS AL3 8RX

Application **DEFERRED** to next meeting

039. 4/0018/15/FHA – FIRST FLOOR EXTENSION TO BUNGALOW AND RAISED PATIO.10 BRIAR WAY, BERKHAMSTED, HP4 2JJ

Application **DEFERRED** to next meeting

#### 040. APPEALS

Noted the following reports:

- 1. Appeals Lodged
- 2. Appeals Allowed
- 3. Appeals Dismissed
- 4. Decisions on Appeals

The meeting ended at 23.50pm